1: 33: 03 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

Thonpson

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 18, 2015
1:33 p.m

called the House Finance

neeting to order at 1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Jerry Burnett,

Mar k Neunman, Co-Chair
St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Lynn Gattis
David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki
Cat hy Munoz
Lance Pruitt

Tamm e W son

Deputy Comm ssi oner,

Committee

Treasury Division,

Department of Revenue; Representative Jonathan Kreiss-
Tonki ns, Sponsor.
PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
Brandon S Spanos, Deputy Director, Tax Di vi si on,
Departnent of Revenue.
SUMVARY
HB 68 ELECTRONI C DI STRI B. OF REPORTS
HB 68 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.
House Fi nance Conmittee 1 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



HB 88 FEES FOR TI RES

HB 88 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair Thonpson di scussed the neeting agenda.

#hb88
HOUSE BILL NO. 88

"An Act relating to remttance of tire fees; and
providing for an effective date."

1: 34: 07 PM

JERRY BURNETT, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, TREASURY DI VI SI QON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, testified that the bill would align
the filing date for tire fees with other taxes filed on a
nonthly basis. He shared that tire fees currently were
filed every 30 days, after the beginning of each quarter,
rather than the end of the nonth.

BRANDON  S. SPANGCS, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, TAX DI VI SI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE (via teleconference), relayed that
the bill would align the filing date for quarterly tire fee
tax payers. He said that the tax return and paynent were
currently due after the end of quarter, which confused sone
tax payers during the nmonths of July, Cctober and January
because the quarter ended one day before the end of the
nonth. He shared that the confusion had led to late filings
which resulted in their losing a tinely filing credit,
causing conplaints. He stated that the legislation would
elimnate confusion for tax payers, as well as protect them
fromthe 5 percent penalty for filing only one day | ate.

1: 37: 16 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson recalled that the conmttee had studied
the change when it examned the Indirect Expenditure
Report. He noted that the change had the potential of
costing the state noney. He believed that filing tinely
reports should be a practice of doing business in Al aska.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er understood that there was a credit to be

earned by vendors who filed in a tinely manner as well as a
5 percent penalty for filing | ate.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



M. Spanos replied in the affirnmative. He said that the
penalty applied to all tax types in the division and the
tinmely filing credit was specific to only a few tax types,
the tire fee being one of those tax types.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked how nuch the fees were and how
much of the fee was passed onto the consuner.

M. Spanos answered that the tax was $2.50 per new tire and
the additional studded tire fee of $5.00; a new studded
tire would be $7.00 total. He said that there were
exenptions for tires not used on roads, such as tires for
all terrain vehicles.

Vi ce- Chair Saddl er asked how much revenue cane in from the
tire fees.

M. Spanos replied that he did not have the figure on hand.

M. Burnett interjected that the figure was approxinmtely
$1 million annually.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that the 5 percent of the anount
coll ected would not exceed $900 per quarter. He asked for
further detail.

1: 40: 54 PM

M. Spanos replied that the $900 per quarter figure had
been created when the fee was passed. He believed that the
cap stemmed from concern that the state would pay too nuch
of an incentive for tinmely filing.

Co- Chair Thonpson understood that the nmaxi rum was $900. M.
Spanos replied in the affirmative; if 5 percent of the tax
exceeded $900 dollars then the credit would be limted to
$900.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked for the total value of the
indirect expenditure credits. He surnm sed that the anpunt
of noney collected did not appear to be high.

M. Spanos answered that he did not have the detail on
hand.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



Co- Chair Thonmpson wondered why the vendors received the
credit. He did not believe the state gave rental car
conpani es credits.

M. Spanos relayed that he did not know. He pointed out to
the coonmttee that there was a vehicle rental tax in place.

M. Burnett noted that the legislation had been passed
during the Miurkowski Adm nistration. He noted that other
credits were being examined in order to decide whether it
made sense to continue to honor them

Co-Chair Neuman asserted that there were significant
requirenents for tire sales that made the credits
necessary. He referred to data provided by Dave and Judy
Schneider, Diversified Tires, Wasilla. He wondered why the
type of tire sold was of such inportance.

M. Spanos replied that it was fairly comon in the
division to request gross incone before a net nunber was
realized. He wused the exanple of cigarette sales; the
division wanted to know whether the cigarettes were being
sold to Indian Reservations or being exported out of the
state. He stated that for exenpt purposes the tire would be
t axabl e except for the exenption; if a tire was sold to the
United States governnment for official use then it would not
be taxed but the division would still require a record of
the sale of the tire

1:45:59 PM

Co-Chair Neuman noted that sellers were required to report
how many tires were studded each day. He observed that
conpanies had to stud tires in Septenber to be ready for
the wi nter season. He opined that the businesses had to
physically count the nunmber of tires each season. He
believed that the businesses were subject to too many
requi renents.

Co- Chair Thonpson observed that state governnent was maki ng
the i ssue nore conpl ex than necessary.

Representative Gattis relayed that she spoke to the sane
busi ness owners. She thought that the bill insulted the
intelligence of busi ness owner s. She expressed
enbarrassnment that the legislation was under debate during
the current fiscal climte.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



M. Burnett rebutted that the bill would nake it easier for
tire dealers to know when to report. He noted that there
had been confusion on the issue and cited exanples of
busi nesses reporting at the incorrect time and being
penal i zed. He said that the departnent had reviewed sone
internal processes and that this particular issue had risen
to the forefront.

1: 49: 23 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki thought the change should be nmade
in regulation, not statute.

M. Burnett replied that there was a specific date set in
statute, which could not be changed by regul ati on.

Representative Kawasaki wondered whether it was the
departnment's intention to include |anguage that changed the
date to a specific day of the nonth.

M. Burnett replied that the date would be the |ast day of
t he cal endar nonth.

Representati ve Kawasaki understood that a previous nonths
tire recei pts were due 15 days into the follow ng nonth.

M. Spanos clarified that it was currently 30 days after
the end of the calendar quarter. He explained that the
change would be to the end of nonth following the end of
t he cal endar quarter.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki queried how many Al askans filed the
tire tax.

M. Spanos replied that the data was available in the
division's annual report. He believed it was approximately
100 filers.

Representative Kawasaki asked for the title of the
di vision's report.

M. Spanos answered that it was the departnent's tax
di vi sion's annual report.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki wondered if the report was provided
to the legislature in paper form

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



M. Burnett replied no. He shared that the report could be
found onli ne.

Representative GQuttenberg understood that the bill had been
crafted as a result of conplaints fromtire tax filers. He
wondered how many filers were repeat offenders and what the
average penalty was.

1:53: 14 PM

M. Spanos responded was not sure about repeat offenders.
He said that when filers appealed they had clained that the
date had confused them and should be clarified.

Representative Cuttenberg asked how the businesses filed
for the tax.

M. Spanos answered that the process included a new online
filing option. Previously filing had been only in paper
form filers now had both options.

Representative GQuttenberg asked about any feedback given on
the integration of the two options.

M. Spanos replied that there had been hiccups, but
f eedback had primarily been positive.

Representative Quttenberg whether the date change would be
probl ematic for the conputerized filing process.

M. Spanos replied no; it involved in sinply changing the
field on the conputerized spreadsheet.

Representative Gara stated that the bill was to protect
busi nesses who had been caught in the glitch in the law. He
t hought that the bill offered a sinple fix that would save
the state noney. He expressed confusion at individual
committee nenber's opposition to the |egislation.

1:58: 09 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler believed that the bill would provide
sinplicity and consi stency.

Representative Gattis recommended that the inventory forns
for busi nesses be reviewed and changed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



Representative Pruitt wondered why this tax item had been
chosen as a priority. He probed whether there were other
opportunities within the tax division for change that could
be included in the bill.

M. Burnett answered that the bill had come up through the
tax division to the commissioner's office in the tine
needed to get a bill introduced at the beginning of the

current legislative session. He believed there would be
additional itens in the future.

Representative Pruitt wondered whether the possible other
itens would be introduced in nultiple small bills.

Co- Chair Thonpson replied in the negative.

HB 88 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb68
HOUSE BI LL NO. 68

"An  Act relating to the preparation, electronic

di stribution, and posting of reports by state
agenci es. "
2:02: 08 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JONATHAN KREI SS- TOWKI NS, SPONSOR,
comuni cated that the bill sought to digitize annua
reports and other printed public records. He felt that this
could save the state $.5 million per year in printing and
production costs. He relayed that the bill had a negative

fiscal note.

Co- Chair Thonpson appreciated the negative fiscal note,
which reflected a savings to the state of approximately
$400, 000 per vyear.

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins said that additional figures
from the Departnent of Transportation and Public Wrks
reflected a possible savings of $580,000 per year.

Co-Chair Thonpson understood there were sone reports that
were required to be printed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



Representative Kreiss-Tonkins replied in the affirmative.
He el aborated that the printing of the reports was at the
di scretion of comm ssioners. He anticipated that docunents
with wide public circulation would need to be printed. He
shared that publishing of certain reports could cost up to
$20 per copy.

2: 06: 48 PM

Representative Gara relayed that one of the nobney savers
related to contracting out for graphic design. He gave
former Representative Kyle Johannsen credit for work on a
simlar bill in the past.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that there were people in the
audi ence avail able for invited testinony.

Represent ati ve Edgnon spoke in support of the |egislation
He believed the bill reflected that the state was becom ng
nore connected by broadband. He wondered if the sponsor had
recei ved any pushback due to a |l ack of broadband capability
in areas of the state.

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins replied in the negative. He
shared that he had consulted with libraries statew de and
learned that libraries would sent physical reports to
resi dents statew de.

2:10: 38 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler felt that the bill presunmed that the
public interest in state government could be satisfied
online. He wondered whether the benefit of the estimated
savings woul d outweigh the benefit of offering the fullest
possi bl e access to public information.

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins did not believe that bil
woul d jeopardize the public's access to information. He
countered that a large nunber of the reports that would be
affected by the legislation were not in circulation, in
hard copy, for the general public.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked about confidence in the $530, 000
savings to the state.

Representati ve Kr ei ss- Tonki ns bel i eved t here was
variability around the nunber. He believed that there would

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



be a savings to the state, but that it could not be
preci sely projected how much

Co- Chair Thonpson remarked that glossy cardstock used in
printing increased the cost.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler thought that any savings could go to
expanded broadband in the state.

Representative Kawasaki queried the types of reports
covered in the bill.

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins answered that the bill would
apply to all state publications. He stated that there were
publications that the departnents would choose to print. He
said that many of the docunents that had inspired the bil
were the ones read by legislators and their staff.

Representative Kawasaki wondered if the legislature would
have |less access to publications. He referred several
reports that he would have m ssed in an email [|ink.

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins replied that legislators
m ght need to scrutinize their email nore closely or search
for reports online. He thought that the legislation would
require legislators to be nore proactive in seeking out
i nformati on.

2:19:22 PM

Represent ati ve Kawasaki wondered whether there would be an
opt-out elenment to the program

Representative Minoz spoke in support of the bill. She
wondered about agencies that provided publications that
were key to their mssion. She provided exanples such as
the Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVHS) and tourism

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins answered that |anguage in the
bill that would preenpt the problem was | ocated on page 3,
lines 14-15; exceptions would be allowed for agencies to
print necessary reports for the public.

2:22: 04 PM

Representative Guttenberg asserted that the assunption that
residents statewide had internet access was iInaccurate. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



strongly advocated for broadband expansion across the
state. He spoke to Section 3 of the bill. He worried that
the docunents would difficult to |locate, and queried
whet her the docunents would be easily found in a specific
place online. He wondered if libraries would be charged
with the responsibility of tracking the docunents.

Representati ve Kreiss-Tonkins spoke to the universality of
internet access in Al aska. He opined that there were areas
his district that had poor internet access. He felt that

public access to information was relative; the bill would
not manifestly inpair access to public information. He
offered that operations like the Al aska Housing Finance

Corporation, for instance, did not currently send a copy of
their annual report to every resident of Alaska. He
expl ai ned that the Al aska Online Public Notice System woul d
be the repository for docunents and the State Library woul d
keep 5 hard copies on file in perpetuity; the archival
woul d be dual, digital and analog. He suggested that the
public notice system would need to be assessed for user
friendliness.

2:28: 08 PM

Representative GQuttenberg reiterated his concerns.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er cautioned that savings due to the bil
in paper and trees wuld not be reflected in all of
Al aska's natural resources. He expounded that graphite,
petroleum gold and other resources would be wused. He
warned that radical technological changes had unforeseen
consequences. He worried that the files mght be
i naccessible in 15 - 100 years. He encouraged libraries to
enploy archival storage techniques when handling hard
copies. He wondered if the sponsor would consider an
amendnent to allow for a transition period from analog to
digital and that there be public notice when a docunent was
no | onger going to be physically avail abl e.

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins replied that the spirit of
the amendnment was well received. He wondered that if the
transition could be eased by agencies opting to alert the
public in advance of expiring docunents.

Representative Gara directed the commttee's attention to
Page 3, line 20:

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



Sec. 44.99.260. Print copy requests.

A person nmay obtain, at no charge, up to five print
copies of reports from the state library distribution
and data access center under AS 14.56.170 each day. A
person may obtain additional print copies of reports
from the state library distribution and data access
center for a reasonable fee under AS 14.56.170.

He highlighted Page 2, line 3:

Except as provided in AS 44.99. 260, r easonabl e
[ REASONABLE] fees for reproduction or printing costs
and for mailing and distribution of materials my be
charged by the center

He wondered about the difference between the two passages.

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins replied that the state
library fee referenced in the bill was $0.10 per copy. He
said that the first 5 copies wuld be free, beyond that
there would be a m nimal user fee.

Representative Gara concl uded that physical copies would be
available to the public. He thought that the public could
be easily alerted to hard copies expiring with a one page

docunment. He said that the public would always want
Departnment of Fish and Gane docunents available in print
and the bill would nake that possible. He referred to

publications fromthe executive branch and wondered how the
sendi ng of docunents woul d be approved by that branch.

Representative Gattis remarked that the docunments in the
Capitol Building alone required a |arge anount of paper.
She spoke in support of the legislation. She believed the
i ssue was tinely.

2:36:56 PM

Represent ati ve Kawasaki wondered whether the bill included
the legislative and judicial branches under the "agencies"
| anguage.

Representative Kreiss-Tonkins replied that he would
investigate the issue further.

HB 68 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

House Fi nance Committee 11 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



Co- Chai r Thonpson di scussed housekeepi ng.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

2:38: 45 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 2:38 p. m

House Fi nance Committee 12 03/18/15 1:33 P. M



